

Overview and Company

This application for licence exemption would be enriched by reference to the Company's website www.greenhillwater.com.au which details the company's beginnings, reports, constitution, FAQ, contact points, and so on. Greenhill Water Supply Co Ltd (GWSC) is a non-profit company established in 1998 and is wholly owned and operated by Greenhill property owners. Its ABN is 66 084 867 461 and its ACN is 084 867 461. It is a public company limited by guarantee, with the liability of each member limited to \$5. A copy of the **Constitution** is attached.

Service Type

The principal purpose of the GWSC scheme is to source, maintain and supply reticulated non-drinking water to residents, CFS, AHC and other approved organisations in the region around the community of Greenhill so as to improve water availability in periods of low rainfall and enhance fire protection. Water is not intended for human consumption , and consumption thereof is at the consumer's risk. Its quality is independently tested by SA Water at regular intervals during the year and problems of any kind are notified by the posting of warning signs. A plan of the water supply is attached. Essentially the area concerned is the community of Greenhill which is accessed from the Greenhill Road by entering Quintin Avenue which then joins the major road, Yarrabee, from which run minor roads Hillside, Christopher, and Staplehurst. A small number of Greenhill Road residents are members, essentially between the Quintin Road exit and up about 300 metres. Yarrabee runs more or less parallel to Greenhill Road which it re-joins 1.7 kms higher and towards the east. A further 300 meters or so along Greenhill Road, the second major road, Yanagin, is accessed, at the top of which stands the Concrete holding tank. The elevation between the tank and the extreme lower end of Yarrabee is 164m and the length of the main is 2.59kms.

The tank's capacity is 508kls. It is fed by a mains pipe rating PN 12, originally endorsed as "Specific Project Areas" by SA Water in their original review. GWSC is actively replacing impact damaged sections with PN 18 when such instances occur. A copy of the **Pipeline Summary** is attached. The bore is on premises about halfway down Yarrabee Road with a shed containing switchboard and

backup battery, power being supplied by an underground cable. Another shed contains the bore and headworks. The 3 phase switchboard supplies electrical power to the Grundfos pump. 6 stop valves are distributed at strategic points through the area covered, as are 5 air valves, and 4 pressure control valves. Meters are supplied to each property and water supplied to that meter, whereupon GWSC's responsibility ceases. Individual members are responsible for the design, installation or maintenance of any reticulation system attached to the water meter outlet. To emphasise the primary fire fighting purpose of this system, 30 fire hydrants/fire hoses are distributed throughout the area.

Members

Membership is confined to the registered proprietors of properties located in the township of Greenhill. A non-refundable membership fee is payable and the membership attaches to the property so that when sold it transfers to the new registered owner. A prerequisite for membership is that each property must have at least 60,000 litre static capacity as its primary source of water. A minimum of 22,000 litres must be maintained at all times for fire fighting (Planning Act SA). This emphasises that the system is not intended to be the sole or principal source of domestic or fire fighting water on any property. System maintenance, breakdowns and other unforseen circumstances can lead to closedowns, which indicates the wisdom of a large water reserve per property. Currently there are 131 members which level has scarcely varied in several years. Though there are a very few vacant blocks, their viability for construction is limited and we do not anticipate any increase in membership in the near or even the medium term future. Dwellings are private residences, there is no commercial activity.

Billing/Pricing

Each member is charged a Supply Fee and a Consumption fee. An exemplar **tax invoice** is attached. The Supply Fee is a fixed amount per property for the provision of water service regardless of whether water is actually used. Thus non-consumer members still contribute to fixed costs, maintenance and future upgrades. The Consumption Fee varies according to actual water used. GWSC aims to provide an economical source of water supply to the residents of Greenhill, thus the usage rates have been relatively low since non-potable water is being supplied essentially for fire fighting purposes, and moreover, in earlier times funds were building strongly with the regular addition of new shareholders. Now that that era has passed with very few new members likely, both consumption charges and membership/supply fees are being revised. This reflects the effects of inflation and increased standing charges (e.g. electricity, insurance, spares, piping, contractors, etc.) Our constitution stipulates that no one member be treated any more favourably than another. However it also states that the annual allocation per member is 400,000 litres and penalty rates apply to usage above that.

The Billing aspect is covered by an MS Access database and a MYOB accounting package controls reconciliation, receivables, statements, profit and loss, etc. The meters are read annually and the figures are input into the data base which calculates the due amount for each residence and issues the invoice. The database is regularly updated for changes in ownership and postal addresses.

GWSC aims to provide an economical source of water supply to Greenhill residents. Part of the continuity of that aim is to price water so that a small annual surplus enables known and possible unknown future costs to be met with a reasonable amount of confidence.

Communication

By the Scheme's very nature, the members and Board are reasonably accessible through a variety of methods. For example, to minimise postal costs most bills and flyers are hand-delivered. URGENT notice boards are posted at both ends of Yarrabee Rd, which are viewable by all members. Contact is available through our Website for individual queries such as meter readings, broken pipes, billing etc. That site also features FAQ, contact numbers, the Constitution and links to other sites. The current Board are investigating a complete overhaul of the site and the feasibility of a 1300 phone number. A systematic follow-up of late payers/bad debts involves written communication with such members at 2,3 and 4 month intervals. The new Board have instituted a regular news sheet which keeps members up to date with current news and planned future activities.

Expenditure

Our **2014 Financial statement** is attached. This gives heads of expenditure but as a generality the Board's intention is to work within annual budgets so as to accommodate physical expenditures such as an ongoing programme to replace all gate valves with ball valves, to replace PN 12 pipe with PN 18 when breakages occur, to replace fittings with stainless steel, and to carry out an annual tank inspection and cleaning. Also the Board intends, within that annual budget, an upgrade to intellectual material, for example a more efficient billing package, and a more comprehensive website.

Beyond that annual expenditure, with our sinking fund we look to various options which, without being prescriptive, include extra static tank capacity to improve fire fighting ability, an automatic system to gauge tank volume at any stage and to activate pumping if required, and the purchase of a generator-set to cover the possibility of mains power outage in high fire risk periods.

Technical

The Board are all volunteers, retired or semi retired. They bring a great deal of expertise in administration, engineering. including electrical, plumbing, and business. The Board contracts a local resident to undertake most of the minor tasks, such as burst pipes, meter replacements, tank cleaning etc. It is on an as needs basis. For heavier or more major tasks the services of trusted specialised bodies are called upon such as a local Pump Company or a trenching contractor. Supply is vital and the Board tries to ensure any interruption is minimised. Since the water is intended primarily for fire fighting, for example, the annual tank cleaning takes place in the second half of the year, when domestic tank capacity should be at a maximum from winter rains.

Conclusion

GWSC is a long standing, not-for-profit company run successfully by volunteers for some 17 years. It provides a service in an area where a public service was not feasible and acknowledged as such by a previous government. It has proven over the years that its customers will receive water regularly and at an affordable price. As has been mentioned SA Water test the water regularly and no problems have been found. The water is non potable which is emphasised throughout the the Company's literature.

It is felt that the longevity of the Company, its pricing, reliability of supply and quality make it a prime candidate for licence exemption.

The Corporations Act 2001 A Company Limited By Guarantee

CONSTITUTION

Of

GREENHILL WATER SUPPLY CO LTD

Certificate of registration of a Company This is to certify that GREENHILL WATER SUPPLY CO LTD

Australian Company Number 084 867 461

Is a registered Company under the Corporations Act of South Australia.

The Company is limited by guarantee.

The Company is a public Company.

The day of commencement of registration is the twenty-third day of October 1998.

INTERPRETATION

1. In this constitution unless the context otherwise requires:

"Company" means Greenhill Water Supply Co Ltd

"Directors" mean the persons appointed Directors of the Company and where the context allows includes the person appointed as the sole Director of the Company;

"Act" means the Corporations Act 2001;

"seal" means the common seal of the Company and includes any official seal of the Company;

"Sub-Clause" means (where not otherwise defined) a sub-clause within the same clause as the reference occurs;

"Property" means an area of land described on a single Certificate of Title on the register of the Land Services Group of the South Australian Department for Administrative and Information Services:

The singular shall mean and include the plural and vice versa and any gender shall mean and include all other genders;

References to any statutory enactment shall mean and be constructed as references to that enactment as amended modified and re-enacted from time to time;

The index and headings used herein are for ease of reference only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of this constitution;

Words importing persons shall include corporations.

- 2. Section 46 of the Acts Interpretation Act 1901 applies in relation to this constitution as if they were an instrument made by an authority under a power conferred by the Corporations Act 1989 as in force on the day which this Constitution becomes binding on the Company.
- 3. Division 10 of Part 1.2 of the Corporations Act applies in relation to this Constitution as if they were an instrument made under that Act as in force on the day when this Constitution became binding on the Company.
- 4. Except so far as the contrary intention appears in the constitution, an expression has, in a provision of this Constitution that deals with a matter dealt with by a particular provision of the Act, the same meaning as in that provision of the Act.
- 5. All replaceable rules contained in the Act shall not apply to the Company.

OBJECTS OF THE COMPANY

- 6. The objects for which the Company is established are to source, maintain and supply reticulated water to the residents and organisations in the region of the suburb of Greenhill, South Australia.
- 7. The income and property of the Company whensoever or howsoever derived shall be applied solely towards the promotion of the objects of the Company as set forth in this constitution, and no portion thereof shall be bought or transferred directly or indirectly by way of dividend, bonus or otherwise howsoever by way of profit to members of the Company, provided that nothing herein contained shall prevent the payment in good faith of remuneration to any officers or servants of the Company or to any member of the Company in return for any services actually rendered to the Company nor for goods supplied in the ordinary course of business but so that no member of the Company shall be appointed to any salaried office of the Company or any officer of the Company paid by fees and that no remuneration or other benefit in money or monies worth shall be bought or

given by the Company to any member except re-payment of out-of-pocket expenses or reasonable and proper rent for premises demised or let to the Company.

MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMPANY

- 8. Membership of the Company is obtained by paying to the Company the membership fee determined by the Directors.
- 9. Only the registered proprietors, as described on the Certificate of Title, of Properties located in the suburb of Greenhill in the state of South Australia are eligible to be members of the Company.
- 10. Only one membership will be accepted in respect of each Property.
- 11. Membership fees, once paid, are not refundable.
- 12. Membership is transferable only where an existing member sells a Property for which membership is held. In that case membership in respect of the Property sold transfers on settlement to that person registered as the new owner on the Certificate of Title for the Property and to no other.
- 13. In circumstances where funds held by the Company are inadequate to meet particular short-term needs, the Company may call upon members to make a cash contribution to the Company additional to initial membership fees. Any such contribution shall be levied on all members equally.

LIABILITY OF MEMBERS

- 14. The liability of the members is limited.
- 15. Every member of the Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Company in the event of the same being wound up while he is a member, or within one year after he ceases to be a member, for payment of the debts and liabilities of the Company contracted before he ceases to be a member and of the costs, charges and expenses of winding up and for the adjustment of the rights of the contributories among themselves, such amounts as may be required, not exceeding FIVE DOLLARS (\$5.00).

CONDITIONS GOVERNING THE SUPPLY OF WATER

- 16. Each consumer of water supplied by the Company must be a member of the Company.
- 17. Where a benefit to the community of Greenhill can be demonstrated, the Directors, at their discretion, may elect to supply water to agencies of the South Australian Government under terms and conditions to be determined by the Directors.
- 18. Members of the Company may not use water supplied by the Company for commercial purposes nor may a member sell or pass title to water supplied by the Company to a third party.
- 19. Water supplied by the Company may be used to supplement a member's independently collected rainwater supplies provided that over a full year water supplied by the Company is not and does not become the member's principal source of domestic supply.
- 20. Membership in respect of properties on which new dwellings are constructed will not be accepted, or will not be continued where conditional membership is accepted, unless facilities constructed incorporate rainwater collection, storage and domestic reticulation facilities with a static capacity of at least 60,000 litres and the intention to use those facilities as the principal source of domestic water supplies can be demonstrated.
- 21. Routine maintenance, equipment failure, unusual conditions, unforseen circumstances and other faults may result in temporary interruptions to the supply of water. Directors will provide members with reasonable advanced notice of scheduled interruptions by displaying appropriate notices. Notwithstanding, each member of the Company absolves the Company and its officers from any implication of guaranteed continuous or on-demand water supply.

22. Fees:

a. Each member will be charged an annual Supply Fee and a Water Consumption Fee.

- i. The Supply Fee, a fixed amount per property independent of the quantity of water used, is to be paid on invoice for the provision of the water service regardless of whether water is actually used.
- ii. The Water Consumption Fee, a fee that varies according to the amount of water used, is to be paid on invoice.
- b. Charges will be determined in such a way that no one member is treated any more favourably than any other member.
- c. Fees and charges will be established annually in advance by the Directors and tabled at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.
- 23. Directors of the Company may stop supply, including disconnection of facilities, where a member becomes in excess of 90 days in arrears in any monies due to the Company. Where supply is disconnected, a reconnection fee as determined by the Directors may be charged and is payable in full together with any arrears, before supply will be reconnected.
- 24. Water supplied by the Company is untreated bore water and is not intended for human consumption. Each member absolves the Company and its officers from any liability related to water quality or fitness for any purpose.
- 25. The Company will supply water to a meter on, or close to a boundary of the Property of each member. The meter will be supplied by and will remain the property of the Company. Members are responsible for the installation and maintenance of any reticulation facilities attached to the meter outlet and absolve the Company of any liability for any loss or damage that may arise from failure, howsoever caused and specifically including loss or damage caused by water pressure, of equipment or facilities directly or indirectly connected to the water supply.
- 26. The water allocation to each member is 400,000 litres and the Directors will apply penalty rates to any consumption above this figure.

DAMAGE TO COMPANY PROPERTY

- 27. Members shall take all reasonable steps to protect Company property from damage and shall notify officers of the Company without delay if faults or damage to Company property are observed.
- 28. A member is responsible for reimbursing the Company for the cost of repairs to Company infrastructure, whether located on the member's property or elsewhere, where that damage was due to an act by the member himself, by a member of the member's family or by an agent of the member.

BREACH AND DEFAULT

- 29. The Directors of the Company may elect to cancel the membership in the Company of any member of the Company who acts in breach of this constitution, whether wilfully or not, or who remains, without specific approval, in default on monies due to the Company for a period in excess of 120 days.
- 30. The Directors may act to cancel a membership in breach or default without providing the affected member with prior warning of the intention to cancel.
- 31. Where the Directors elect to cancel a membership in the Company, the Directors will consign written notice of cancellation by ordinary mail to the Member at the address recorded in the Register of Members of the Company. Cancellation will be effective on the moment the notice is mailed.
- 32. The monies contributed to the Company by way of membership fees have been committed to and expended on Company infrastructure in good faith. Accordingly, where a membership is cancelled

due to breach or default as defined in Clause 29, any membership fees paid by the member will be forfeited to the Company.

TRANSFER OF PROPERTY OWNERSHIP

- 33. Each member agrees that on transfer of ownership of a Property, membership in the Company in respect of that Property will transfer to the new proprietors registered on the Certificate of Title without restriction and without cost to the Company.
- 34. A vendor member shall ensure that the Company is provided with full details of the change in proprietorship of a Property for which membership in the Company is held.
- 35. The vendor member remains responsible for any monies due to the Company at the date of sale of the property including for water consumed to the date of settlement. The purchaser becomes a member of the Company and assumes responsibility for fees and charges on the date of settlement on the Property.
- 36. In the event that the purchaser elects not to continue with membership in the Company, supply will be disconnected but monies paid to the Company as Membership Fees, Supply Fees or Consumption Fees will not be refunded either to the vendor or to the purchaser.

WINDING-UP OF THE COMPANY

37. If upon the winding up or dissolution of the Company there remains after satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities any property whatsoever, the same shall not be paid to or distributed amongst the members of the Company but shall be given or transferred to some organisation or organisations having objects similar to the objects of the Company and whose constitution shall prohibit the distribution of its or their income and property among its or their members to an extent at least as great as is imposed on the Company under or by virtue of this constitution, such organisation or organisations to be determined by the members of the Company at or before the time of the dissolution and in default thereof by such Court as may have or acquire jurisdiction in the matter.

PAYMENTS BY WAY OF BROKERAGE OR COMMISSION

38. The Company may exercise the power to make payments by way of brokerage or commission conferred by the Act in the manner provided by the Act.

CERTIFICATES

39. A person whose name is entered as a member in the register of members is entitled without payment to receive a certificate in respect of being a member.

GENERAL MEETINGS

- 40. Any Director may convene a general meeting at any time.
- 41. Where eleven members of the Company, in writing, jointly request the Directors to convene a general meeting and provide the Directors with details of business proposed for discussion at the general meeting, the Directors will, within 30 days of receiving the request, convene a general meeting to discuss the matters raised.
- 42. A notice of a general meeting shall specify the place, the day and the hour of meeting, shall state the general nature of the business to be transacted at the meeting, information regarding the right to appoint a proxy and, if a special resolution is to be proposed at the meeting, the terms of that resolution.

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

- 43. Proceedings are to be as follows:
 - a. No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of members is present at all times during the meeting.
 - b. For the purpose of determining whether a quorum is present:
 - i. a person attending as a proxy, or representing a corporation that is a member, shall be deemed to be a member;
 - ii. if a member has appointed more than one proxy or representative count only one of them;
 - iii. if an individual is attending both as a member and as a proxy or body corporate representative count them only once.
 - c. A quorum shall be eleven members entitled to vote.
 - d. If a quorum is not present within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting
 - i. where the meeting was convened upon requisition of members the meeting shall be dissolved; or
 - ii. in any other case -
 - the meeting stands adjourned to such day, and at such time and place, as the Directors determine or, if no determination is made by the Directors, to the same day in the next week at the same time and place; and
 - 2. if at the adjourned meeting a quorum is not present within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting shall be dissolved.
 - 3. If the Directors have elected one of their number as chairman of their meetings, he shall preside as chairman at every general meeting.
 - e. Where a general meeting is held and -
 - f. a chairman has not been elected as provided by Sub-Clause 39 e); or
 - g. the chairman is not present within 15 minutes after the time appointed for the holding of the meeting or is unwilling to act, the members present shall elect one of their number to be chairman of the meeting.

The chairman may with the consent of any meeting at which a quorum is present, and shall if so directed by the meeting, adjourn the meeting from time to time and from place to place, but no business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment took place.

- h. When a meeting is adjourned for 30 days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of an original meeting.
- i. Except as provided by Sub-Clause 39 g), it is not necessary to give any notice of an adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting.

44. Polls.

- At any general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show
 of hands unless a poll is (before a vote is taken, before or immediately after or on the
 declaration of the result of the show of hands) demanded
 - i. by the chairman;
 - ii. by at least 5 members present in person or by proxy;
 - iii. by a member or members present in person or by proxy and representing not less than 5% of the total voting rights that may be cast on a poll.
- b. Unless a poll is so demanded, a declaration by the chairman that a resolution has on a show of hands been carried or carried unanimously, or by particular majority, or lost, and an entry

to that effect in the book containing the minutes of the proceedings of the Company, is conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of or against the resolution.

- c. The demand for a poll may be withdrawn.
- d. A challenge to a right to a vote at a general meeting:
 - i. may only be made at the meeting; and
 - ii. must be determined by the Chairman whose decision is final.
- e. If a poll is duly demanded, it shall be taken in such manner and (subject to Sub-Clause f)) either at once or after an interval or adjournment or otherwise as the chairman directs, and the result of the poll shall be the resolution of the meeting at which the poll was demanded.
- f. A poll demanded on the election of a chairman or on a question of adjournment shall be taken forthwith.
- g. In the case of an equality of votes, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, the chairman of the meeting at which the show of hands takes place or at which the poll is demanded, shall not have a casting vote. Where there is an equality of votes, the motion will be taken to be defeated
- 45. At meetings of members each member entitled to vote may vote in person or by proxy or attorney and on a show of hands every member present or a representative of a member has one vote, and on a poll every person present in person or by proxy or attorney has one vote.
- 46. An objection may be raised to the qualification of a voter only at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is given or tendered.
- 47. Any such objection shall be referred to the chairman of the meeting, whose decision is final
- 48. A vote not disallowed pursuant to such an objection is valid for all purposes.

APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES

- 49. A member of the Company who is entitled to attend and cast a vote at a general meeting may appoint a person as the members proxy to attend and vote for the member at the meeting.
- 50. The appointment may specify the proportion or number of votes that the proxy may exercise.
- 51. A member may appoint one proxy in respect of each property on which membership is held and each proxy will represent one vote.
- 52. An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing, or if the appointor is a corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised by such corporation.
- 53. An instrument appointing a proxy may specify the manner in which the proxy is to vote in respect of a particular resolution and, where an instrument of proxy so provides, the proxy is not entitled to vote on the resolution except as specified in the instrument.
- 54. An instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to confer authority to demand or join in demanding a poll. A proxy is entitled to vote on a show of hands.
- 55. An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the following form or in form that is as similar to the following as the circumstances allow –

Greenhill Water Supply Co Ltd

Appointment of Proxy

I/VVe,,of	being a
member/members of the above named Company, hereby appoint	-
of	or, in his absence
of	
to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the *annual general *general mee on the day of 20 and at any adjournment of that	
#This form is to be used *in favour of * against the resolution.	
Signed	
this day of)
*Strike out whichever is not desired #To be inserted if desired	

- 56. A proxy's authority to attend and vote at a general meeting shall not be affected by the presence of the member appointing the proxy.
- 57. A resolution in writing signed by all the members entitled to vote on the resolution and containing a statement that they are in favour of the resolution shall be valid as if it had been passed at a duly convened meeting of members. Such resolution may consist of several documents in identical form each signed by one or more members.
- 58. An instrument appointing a proxy shall not be treated as valid unless the instrument, and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which the instrument is signed, or a notarially certified copy of that power or authority, is or are deposited, not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, or in the case of a poll, not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for the taking of the poll, at the registered office of the Company, a fax number at the Company's Registered office or at such other place fax number or electronic address as is specified for that purpose in the notice convening the meeting.
- 59. A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy or of a power of attorney is valid notwithstanding the previous death or unsoundness of mind of the principal, the revocation of the instrument (or of the authority under which the instrument was executed) or of the power, or the transfer of the share in respect of which the instrument or power is given, if no intimation in writing of the death, unsoundness of mind, revocation or transfer has been received by the Company at the registered office before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the instrument is used or the power is exercised.

APPOINTMENT, RENUMERATION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

- 60. The first Directors of the Company shall be the persons named with their consent in the application for registration of the Company.
- 61. Subject to Sub-Clause b. there shall be no restriction on the number of Directors but the Company may by resolution in a general meeting:
 - a. set a maximum number of Directors;
 - b. set a minimum number of Directors providing that the minimum number shall not be less than three; or
 - c. increase or reduce the maximum or minimum number of Directors so determined providing that the minimum shall not be less than three.

- 62. Every Director appointed under this Constitution shall hold office for three years or until the first general meeting of the Company after the expiry of the three-year term which ever is the longer. A Director whose term has expired may stand for re-election and may be re-elected.
- 63. A Director may resign as a director of the Company by giving a written notice of resignation to the Company at its registered office.
- 64. Subject to the Act the Directors may at any time appoint any person to be a Director, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors, but so that the total number of Directors does not at any time exceed the number determined in the accordance with this Constitution.
- 65. To be eligible to be a Director a person shall be a member of the Company whose principal place of residence is in Greenhill.
- 66. The Directors may be paid all travelling and other expenses properly incurred by them in attending and returning from meetings of the Directors or any committee of the Directors or general meetings of the Company or otherwise in connection with the business of the Company.
- 67. The Company may by ordinary resolution:
 - a. remove any Director before the expiration of his period of office, and may appoint another person in his stead; or
 - b. appoint a person as a Director.
- 68. In addition to the circumstances in which the office of a Director becomes vacant by virtue of the Act, the office of a Director becomes vacant if the Director
 - a. becomes an insolvent under administration;
 - b. becomes of unsound mind or a person whose person or estate is liable to be dealt with in any way under the law relating to mental health;
 - resigns his office by notice in writing to the Company;
 - d. is absent without the consent of the Directors from meetings of the Directors held during a period of 6 months;
 - e. is directly or indirectly interested in any contract or proposed contract with the Company and fails to detail the nature of his interest as required by the Act (subject to the exception in Section 231 (10) of the Act where the Director is the sole Director and the sole member of the Company); or
 - f. ceases to be eligible to be a Director under Clause 65.

POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

- 69. Subject to the Act and to any other provision of this Constitution, the business of the Company shall be managed by or under the direction of the Directors, who may pay all expenses incurred in promoting and forming the Company, and may exercise all such powers of the Company as are not, by the Act or by the provisions of this Constitution, required to be exercised by the Company in general meeting.
- 70. Without limiting the generality of Clause 69, the Directors may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money, to charge any property or business of the Company or all or any of its uncalled capital and to issue debentures or give any other security for debt, liability or obligation of the Company or of any other person.
- 71. The Directors may, by power of attorney, appoint any person or persons to be the attorney or attorneys of the Company for such purposes, with such powers, authorities and discretions (being powers, authorities and discretions vested in or exercisable by the Directors), for such period and subject to conditions as they think fit.
- 72. Any such power of attorney may contain such provisions for the protection and convenience of persons dealing with the attorney as the Directors think fit and may also authorise the attorney to delegate all or any of the powers, authorities and discretions invested in him.

73. All cheques, promissory notes, bankers drafts, bills of exchange and other negotiable instruments, and all receipts for money paid to the Company, shall be signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed or otherwise executed, as the case may be, by any two Directors or in any such manner as the Directors determine.

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

- 74. The Directors may meet together for the dispatch of business and adjourn and otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit.
- 75. A Directors meeting may be called at any time by a Director or a Director's assistant on the requisition of a Director, by giving reasonable notice individually to every other Director.
- 76. The Directors may meet together either in person or by telephone, telex, radio, conference, television or any other form of technology, audio or audio-visual instantaneous communication for the dispatch of business and adjourn and otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit. A resolution passed by such a conference shall, notwithstanding that the Directors are not present together at one place at the time of the conference, be deemed to have been passed at a meeting of the Directors held on the day at the time at which the conference was held. The provisions of this Constitution relating to the proceedings of Directors shall apply, in so far as they are capable of application, to such conferences.
- 77. Subject to the provisions of this Constitution, questions arising at a meeting of Directors shall be decided by a majority of votes of Directors entitled to vote on the resolution and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the Directors.
- 78. In the case of an equality of votes, the chairman of the meeting shall not have a casting vote and the motion will be taken to be defeated.
- 79. Notwithstanding any rule of law to the contrary or the holding by a Director of any office in the Company or in any other company or any other interest a Director may
 - hold any office or place of profit in any company in which the Company may be a shareholder or otherwise interested;
 - b. in any capacity enter into a contract arrangement or understanding with the Company;
 - c. help to constitute a quorum and vote at any meeting of Directors convened to deal with any contract arrangement or understanding; or
 - d. affix the common seal to and sign any instrument in respect of any contract, arrangement or understanding.
- 80. No contract, arrangement or understanding shall be avoided or rendered voidable by reason that the Director is or may be interested in that contract arrangement or understanding within the meaning of Section 231 of the Act or otherwise.
- 81. No Director shall be liable to account to the Company for any profit realised by him from any contract arrangement or understanding.
- 82. A Director entering into a contract arrangement or understanding shall disclose his interest in that contract arrangement or understanding in the manner mentioned in Section 231 of the Act (subject to the exception in Sub-Section (10) thereof where the Director is the sole Director and the sole member of the Company) PROVIDED THAT failure to make or record that disclosure shall not operate to avoid or render voidable the contract arrangement or understanding.
- 83. At a meeting of Directors, the number of Directors whose presence is necessary to constitute a quorum is such number as is determined by the Directors and, unless so determined, is two and the quorum must be present at all times during the meeting.
- 84. In the event of a vacancy or vacancies in the office of a Director or offices of Directors, the remaining Directors may act but, if the number of remaining Directors is not sufficient to constitute a quorum at a meeting of Directors, they may act only for the purpose of appointing a person as a Director in order to make up a quorum for a Directors' meeting or of convening a general meeting of the Company even if the total number of Directors of the Company is not enough to make up the quorum.

- 85. The Directors shall elect one of their number as chairman of their meetings and may determine the period for which he is to hold office.
- 86. Where such a meeting is held and
 - a. a chairman has not been elected as provided by Clause 82 or
 - b. the chairman is not present within 10 minutes after the time appointed for the holding of the meeting or is unwilling to act;
 - c. the directors present shall elect one of their number to be chairman of the meeting.
- 87. The Directors may delegate any of their powers to a committee or committees consisting of such of their number as they think fit.
- 88. A committee to which any powers have been so delegated shall exercise the powers delegated in accordance with any directions of the Directors and a power exercised in this way is the same as if the Directors exercised it.
- 89. The members of such a committee may elect one of their number as chairman of their meetings.
- 90. Where such a meeting is held and
 - a. a chairman has not been elected as provided by Clause 82; or
 - b. the chairman is not present within 10 minutes after the time appointed for the holding of the meeting or is unwilling to act;
 - c. the members present may elect one of their number to be chairman of the meeting.
- 91. A committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks proper.
- 92. Questions arising from the meeting of a committee shall be determined by a majority of votes of the members present and voting.
- 93. In the case of an equality of votes, the chairman of the committee shall not have a casting vote and the motion will be taken to be defeated.
- 94. If all the Directors have signed a document containing a statement that they are in favour of a resolution of the Directors in the terms set out in the document, a resolution in those terms shall be deemed to have been passed at a meeting of the Directors held on the day on which the document was signed and at the time at which the document was last signed by a Director or, if the Directors signed the document on different days, on the day on which, and at the time at which, the document was last signed by a Director.
- 95. For the purposes of Clause 94, two or more separate documents containing statements in identical terms each of which is signed by one or more Directors shall together be deemed to constitute one document containing a statement in those terms signed by those Directors on the respective days on which they signed the separate documents.
- 96. A reference in Clause 94 to all the Directors does not include a reference to a Director who, at a meeting of Directors, would not be entitled to vote on the resolution.
- 97. All acts done by any meeting of the Directors or of a committee of Directors or by any person acting as a Director are, notwithstanding that is afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of a person to be a Director or a member of the committee, or to act as a Director, or that a person so appointed was disqualified, as valid as if the person had been duly appointed and was qualified to be a Director or to be a member of the committee.

ALTERNATIVE DIRECTORS

- 98. A Director may appoint a person who is a member of the Company to be an alternate Director in his place during such period as he thinks fit.
- 99. An alternate Director is entitled to notice of meetings of the Directors and, if the appointor is not present at such a meeting, is entitled to attend and vote his stead.

- 100. An alternate Director may exercise any powers that the appointor may exercise and the exercise of any such power by the alternate Director shall be deemed to be the exercise of the power by the appointor.
- 101. The appointment of an alternate Director may be terminated at any time by the appointor notwithstanding that the period of the appointment of the alternate Director has not expired, and terminates in any event if the appointor vacates office as a Director.
- 102. An appointment, or the termination of an appointment, of an alternate Director shall be effected by a notice in writing signed by the Director who makes or made the appointment and served on the Company.
- 103. If the appointing Director requests the Company to give the alternate Director notice of meetings, the Company must do so.

MANAGING DIRECTOR

- 104. The Directors may from time to time appoint one or more of their number to the office of Managing Director for such period and on such terms as they think fit, and, subject to the terms of any agreement entered into in a particular case, may revoke any such appointment.
- 105. A Director so appointed shall have his appointment automatically terminated if he ceases from any cause to be a Director.
- 106. The Directors may, upon such terms and conditions and with such restrictions as they think fit, confer upon Managing Director any of the powers exercisable by them.
- 107. Any powers so conferred may be concurrent with, or be to the exclusion of, the powers of the Directors.
- 108. The Directors may at any time revoke or vary any of the powers so conferred on a Managing Director.

SECRETARY

109. A secretary of the Company holds office on such terms and conditions as the Directors determine.

COMMON SEAL

- 110. The Directors may provide a Common Seal for the Company and shall provide for the safe custody of that seal which shall only be used by the authority of the Directors previously given.
- 111. A document to which the seal is affixed shall be signed by a Director and countersigned by another Director the secretary or some other person appointed for that purpose;
- 112. A Director may affix the seal to or sign any instrument as aforesaid notwithstanding he may be in any way interested in the transaction.
- 113. A Company may execute a document without using a seal if the document is signed by a Director and counter-signed by another Director the secretary or some other person appointed for that purpose.

INSPECTION OF RECORDS

114. Subject to the Act the Directors shall determine, whether and to what extent, and at what time and places and under what conditions, the accounting records and other documents of the Company or any of them will be open to the inspection of members other than Directors, and a member other than the Director does not have the right to inspect any document of the Company except as provided by law or authorised by the Directors or by the Company in general meeting.

NOTICES

- 115. The Company may give notice of a meeting to a member:
 - a. personally; or
 - b. by sending it by post to the address for the member in the register of members or alternative address (if any) nominated by the member; or
 - c. by sending it to the fax number or electronic address (if any) nominated by the member; or
 - d. by any other means that the provisions of this Constitution permits.
- 116. Where a notice is sent by post, service of the notice shall be deemed to be effected by properly addressing, prepaying, and posting a letter containing the notice, and to have been effected, in the case of a notice of a meeting, 3 days after the date of its posting, and in any other case, at the time at which the letter would be delivered in the ordinary course of post.
- 117. A notice of meeting or other notice sent by fax or other electronic means shall be taken to be given on the business day after it was sent.
- 118. A notice may be given by the Company to the joint holders of a share by giving the notice to one of the members in respect of that share.
- 119. A notice may be given by the Company to a person entitled to a share in the consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a member by serving it on him personally or by sending it to him by post addressed to him by name, or by the title of the representative of the deceased or assignee of the bankrupt, or by any like description, at the address (if any) in Australia supplied for the purpose by the person or, if such an address has not been supplied, at the address to which the notice might have been sent if the death or bankruptcy had not occurred.
- 120. Notice of every general meeting shall be given in the manner authorised by Clause 115 to:
 - every member entitled to vote at the meeting or to receive such notice in accordance of this constitution;
 - b. every person entitled to be a member in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a member who, but for his death or bankruptcy, would be entitled to receive notice of the meeting:
 - c. the auditor (if any) for the time of the Company; and
 - d. each Director.
- 121. No other person is entitled to receive notices of general meetings.

INDEMNITY OF OFFICERS, AUDITORS OR AGENTS

122. Every officer, auditor or agent of the Company shall be indemnified out of the property of the Company against any liability incurred by him in his capacity as officer, auditor or agent in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgement is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted or in connection with any application in relation to any such proceedings in which relief is under the Act granted to him by the Court.



Table 1 - Pipeline Summary

Location	Length (m)	Nominal diameter (mm)	EL Top	EL Bottom	Pressure EL	Max pressure (m)	Pipe rating PN
Bore to Yarrabee Rd (Max pump rate 8 L/s)	202 (278 - measured from Google)	100	464	430	540 (Report 1 indicates 570?)	110 (at ground level) 120 when pumping	16
Tank to PRV1	1201	100	540	472	540	68 (75 when pumping)	16
PRV1 to PRV2	326	100	472	460	540	80 (85 when pumping)	16
PRV2 to PRV3	389	100	460	432	517	85 (113 with PRV fail and pumping)	16
PRV3 to Dia change (Block 48)	155	100	432	416	467	51 (129 with PRV fail and pumping)	16
Dia change to Hydrant 30 (Western end)	516	80	416	382	467	85 (163 with PRV fail and pumping)	16
Reticulatio	n mains				Maria de		
From bore main	176	50	459	457	540	83	12?
Christopher Avenue to Hydrant 12	244	80	481	457	540	83	127
Christopher Avenue to Staplehurst Lane & Hydrant 16	374	80	481	451	540	89	12?
Hillside Road to Hydrant 22	106	80	446	439	517	78	127
Hillside Road to Hydrant 23	37 23 20	100 80 50	444	418	517	99	16 12?
Yarrabee Rd Blocks 74/76 to Block 755	88 83	50 25	442	431	517	86	12?
Yarrabee Rd Blocks 54/56 to Hydrant 26	196 68 38	80 50 50 (AV 5)	423	397	467	70	127
To CFS 45,000 L fire water tank	39	25	416	413	467	70	12?
General block services	Varies up to about 24 m	25		380 for Block 2	467 for Block 2	87 for Block 2 (160 with PRV fail)	12?

Greenhill Water Supply Co Ltd

ABN: 66 084 867 461 PO Box 105, Burnside SA 5066

TAX INVOICE

WATER CONSUMPTION ADVICE FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2014

Invoice Number:

Invoice Date:

Please Note:

All payments are due before 20 December 2014. Penalties may apply to late payments.

Basis for Water Ch	narges (as adopted by	the General Meeting	g held on 30 November 2010
---------------------------	-----------------------	---------------------	----------------------------

Per Kilolitre: First 100KL:

Fifth 100KL:

Second 100KL:

Sixth 100KL:

Third 100KL:

Additional:

Fourth 100KL:

For water supplied to Meter No:

Hillside Street

Meter Type:

Meter Number:

Start Reading:

Finish Reading:

Usage:

Litres

Water Charge:

Note: The Admin Fee and the Special

Admin Fee:

Infrastructure Levy invoiced apply to the 2014/15 Financial Year. Approved at the

Special Infrastructure Levy:

AGM Held on 06 December 2011

Total Payable (GST exempt):

\$-

For any queries relating to this Invoice, F Payments by Electronic Transfer For payments by electronic transfer (pref BankSA BSB 105-141

Account No 043 636 040 Greenhill Water Supply Co Ltd Use: Meter Number as identification

If paying by cheque, please detach here and include this portion of the invoice with your payment

Greenhill Water Supply Co Ltd

Remittance Advice

Total Payable (GST exempt):

Member:

Please ensure payments are received by the Company before 20 December 2014

For Property:

